
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, September 17, 2012 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
a. Donation to Park Fund from Car Show Committee by Chair Alan Kingsley 
b. Parks and Recreation Board Spotlight Presentation by Chair Dennis Vietzke 

 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 

 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. September 4, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are 
routine in nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the 
time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to 
adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the 
council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the 
consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include 
more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to 
review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton 
Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for 
the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be 
made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations, please 
contact Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
September 17, 2012 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
September 17, 2012 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – None.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Refinancing of the 1997 USDA and 2007 DEQ Sewer Bonds    Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. August 2012 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. August 2012 Statistical Report  
b. Order Declaring an Emergency Speed Zone on N. Tenth Avenue. 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Dave Kinney     Informational 
a. August 2012 Operating Report 
b. Public Works Update 

 
Pool Manager’s Report – Rebekah Meeks      Informational 
a. August 2012 Monthly Operating Report 

 
Library Director’s Report – Louise Meyers     Informational 
a. August 2012 Activities/Statistics 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR     
a. Traffic Congestion Update – Texaco Gas Station    Informational 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS        
a. Solicitor Licenses 
b. Sidewalk Maintenance Presentation 
 
ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
September 17, 2012 

 
CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

SEPTEMBER 2012
Monday September 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday September 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday September 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

OCTOBER 2012
Monday October 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday October 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday October 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday October 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday October 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday October 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday October 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

NOVEMBER 2012
Monday November 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday November 6 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday November 9 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday November 12 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY 
Tuesday November 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday November 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday November 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Thursday 

Friday 
November 

22—23 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING 

Monday November 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

DECEMBER 2012
Monday December 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 4 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday December 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday  December 14 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday December 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday December 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday December 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS 
Monday December 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



Consent Agenda 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 
September 4, 2012 

STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

September 4, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m. Mayor Vigil 

 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
OATH OF OFFICE 
a. Oath of Office for New Councilor Emily Gooch by Mayor Scott Vigil: Mayor Vigil 

administered the Oath of Office to incoming City Councilor Emily Gooch. 
 
ROLL CALL 

Mayor Scott Vigil Councilor Jennifer Niegel 
Councilor Henry Porter, excused Councilor James Loftus 
Councilor Brian Quigley Councilor Emily Gooch 
 

STAFF 
Don Eubank, City Administrator 
Christine Shaffer, Finance Director  
Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development, excused 
Louise Meyers, Library Director, excused 
David Kinney, Public Works Director 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney, excused 
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Pool Maintenance Closure Presentation by Rebekah Meeks, Pool Manager: Ms. Meeks 

spoke about the current Pool closure and the maintenance projects being worked on at the 
facility.  

 
She also informed the Council that the recent swim-a-thon event raised over $2,000. 
  
Councilor Quigley asked if repairs being done on the pool surfacing was covered under 
Emerald Pool’s original contract. Ms. Meeks stated it is being done at no cost per the City’s 
contract with Emerald Pool. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Additions to the Agenda: None. 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.: None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. August 20, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Resolution No. 892, Issuance and Sale of City of Stayton Wastewater Revenue Bond for 

$8,316,000 to the USDA for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project 
c. OLCC Change of Ownership – Rif’s Food & Spirits 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 
September 4, 2012 

d. OLCC Change of Ownership Reversal – Stop-N-Save 
 
Mayor Vigil indicated that Councilor Loftus asked to discuss Resolution No. 892, Issuance and 
Sale of City of Stayton Wastewater Revenue Bond for $8,316,000 to the USDA for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Loftus, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to adopt the Consent 
Agenda items a, c, and d. Motion passed 4:0. 

 
Resolution No. 892, Issuance and Sale of City of Stayton Wastewater Revenue Bond for 
$8,316,000 to the USDA for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project 
Councilor Loftus raised concerns about the last sentence in the fifth paragraph on page 6 of the 
resolution. It mentions excess Debt Service and how it should be handled. He questioned giving 
this excess back to the taxpayers. Ms. Shaffer explained the reserve requirements stipulated by 
the USDA and how much money must be placed into reserve each year.  
 
Councilor Loftus stated his concern is that the rate payers are paying in excess. Ms. Shaffer 
stated Ray Bartlett of Economic and Financial Analysis is currently doing a five year forecast for 
the Sewer Enterprise fund. He will be specifically focusing on the next two years and the 
recommended rate increases.   
 
Councilor Loftus asked about adding a sentence to the paragraph mentioning bring this to 
Council for decision. Ms. Shaffer stated the resolution has already been approved by the Bond 
Counsel and the USDA. She also explained if this is not passed tonight, the City risks losing 
their current rate of 2.75%, which would cost the City more money. 
 

MOTION: From Councilor Loftus, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to adopt 
Resolution No. 892. Motion passed 4:0. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – None.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Social Media Policy and Implementation of City of Stayton Social Media Sites 
a. Staff Report: Ms. Angelo reviewed the staff report included in the Council’s meeting 

packet. 
 
b. Council Deliberation: Ms. Gooch asked which employee would be running the Facebook 

page. Ms. Angelo stated it would be herself and one other employee will be trained on how 
to make updates to the page if needed. 

 
Councilor Loftus expressed concern with the amount of time that would be put into the 
Facebook page and having that additional time turn into a full time job. Ms. Angelo 
explained that her hope is to schedule a time once a week to update the page with 
information submitted by the different City departments. Facebook offers a feature that 
allows you to schedule a specific date and time for your post to publish. This will allow Ms. 
Angelo to schedule posts ahead of time, rather than making several updates per day. 
Councilor Quigley stated when this topic was first brought before Council in May, he was 
apprehensive. However, in the last couple of days he has visited Facebook pages for other 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 
September 4, 2012 

cities and found himself very impressed. Cities are able to highlight community events, road 
closures, and other items happening in their area.  

 
c. Council Decision:   
 

MOTION: From Councilor Loftus, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to adopt the Social 
Media Policy and authorize City staff to implement the official City of 
Stayton Facebook and Twitter accounts. Motion passed 4:0. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 893, Transportation Enhancement Grant Application 
a. Staff Report: Mr. Kinney reviewed his staff report regarding an application staff would like 

to submit for a Transportation Enhancement Grant. 
 

Councilor Loftus asked if the intersection where First Avenue, Fern Ridge Road, and Shaff 
Road come together is included in the IMAP. Mr. Kinney stated it was not.  

 
b. Council Deliberation: None. 
 
c. Council Decision:   
 

MOTION: From Councilor Loftus, seconded by Councilor Niegel, to approve Resolution 
No. 893, authorizing the City of Stayton to apply for a Transportation 
Enhancement / Bicycle Pedestrian Grant from the Oregon Department of 
Transportation for Stayton Middle School Area Safe Route to School 
Improvements. 

 
Council Discussion 
 
Councilor Loftus asked a question about a section of the grant application where it is 
indicated there is a need to acquire property. Mr. Kinney spoke about the need to have five to 
ten feet of right-of-way dedicated by the school district for sidewalks, and there is potential 
that the City would have to approach other property owners depending on design of the 
project to the east and west of Stayton Middle School on the north side of Shaff Road. 
 
Motion passed 4:0. 
 

STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Public Works Director’s Report – David Kinney 
a. Public Works Update: Mr. Kinney updated the Council on current Public Works projects as 

outlined in his informational staff report. 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – None.  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Mr. Eubank reminded the Council about the upcoming Chamber Forum lunch. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR – None. 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 
September 4, 2012 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
a. Councilor Loftus announced that his daughter entered the Gerry Frank Chocolate Cake 

Baking contest at the Oregon State Fair and was awarded first place.  
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Solicitor Licenses 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 
 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 17TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2012, 
BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL.  
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:    By:  

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:    Attest:  

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 
       
Date:    Transcribed by:  
 Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



New Business 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilor 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: September 17, 2012 
 
S UBJECT:  Refinancing of the 1997 USDA and 2007 DEQ Sewer Bonds 
ISSUE: 
With Bond rates at a 10 year low, it would be prudent to discuss refinancing two Sewer Bonds, 
one that was issued in 1997 and the second in 2007.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
D.A. Davidson & Co. has submitted a refinancing option that will save the Sewer revenue fund 
$1,312,514.  D.A. Davidson is ranked 6th nationally for number of bonds issued in 2010.  They are 
the largest full-service brokerage firm headquartered in the Pacific Northwest.   
 
The D.A. Davidson recommendation will reduce the term of the USDA Bond payoff by five years, 
the interest will be reduced from 5% to 2.85%.  The DEQ Bond payoff will remain the same term 
but have reduced interest from 2.92% to 2.5%.  Bond interest rates will be higher for the USDA 
refinance due to the term of repayment being longer. 
 
The Finance Department will continue to review the refunding analysis reports as they are 
submitted. A firm will be selected based on the best cost savings offered.  If the City Council wishes 
to move forward, Bond Counsel will be contacted to draft the necessary resolution to issue Bonds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the City Council direct the Finance Department to move forward with the 
refinance of outstanding Sewer debt, bringing a Resolution to issue Bonds to the October 15, 
2012 City Council Meeting.  
  
OPTIONS: 
1. Direct Staff to move forward with the refinancing of the current Sewer debt. 
 
2. Do nothing. 
 
MOTION(S) 
 
1. Move to have staff return with a Resolution to issue Bonds on October 15, 2012. 
 
2.  No motion necessary.  

















Staff / Commission 
Reports 



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: September  17, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Finance Department Report   
      
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City.  I have 
identified the following funds as the major operating funds:  General Fund, Public Works 
Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Street Fund and Swimming 
Pool Fund.  If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Departmental activity: 
 
Utility Billing:                August 2012                           July 2012 
 Number of Bills sent out      2,608                                 2,631 
 Delinquent Notices sent out        477                              483 
 Courtesy Delinquent Notices sent to Landlords      219                  220 
           Notified of Impending Shut off & Penalty                106                                    136 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment    15          24 
           Services still Disconnected                                            0                                        0 
 
Accounts Payable: 
 Number of Checks Issued                    159        128 
 Total Amount of Checks                $599,689.46               $775,344.88 
 
Accounts Receivable: 
 Number of Invoices Sent Out             3                               2
 Total Amount of Invoices          $2,306.25          $680.00 
  
 
  
 
  



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

GENERAL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 28,289.88 1,708,922.00 1,680,632.12 1.7

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 226.00 7,200.00 6,974.00 3.1

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 375.00 1,500.00 1,125.00 25.0

FRANCHISE FEES 107,355.32 626,000.00 518,644.68 17.2

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 3,485.60 16,000.00 12,514.40 21.8

FINES & FORFEITURES 3,501.47 20,500.00 16,998.53 17.1

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 35,788.32 163,200.00 127,411.68 21.9

INTEREST (                2,327.98) 1,000.00 3,327.98 (232.8)

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 6,858.82 385,425.00 378,566.18 1.8

183,552.43 2,929,747.00 2,746,194.57 6.3

EXPENDITURES

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 17,003.12 411,000.00 393,996.88 4.1

ADMINISTRATION 70,645.10 461,973.00 391,327.90 15.3

POLICE 286,277.18 1,866,232.00 1,579,954.82 15.3

PLANNING 20,252.08 138,224.00 117,971.92 14.7

COMMUNITY CENTER 8,057.82 56,798.00 48,740.18 14.2

PARKS 27,636.65 141,576.00 113,939.35 19.5

STREET LIGHTING 8,666.71 103,915.00 95,248.29 8.3

438,538.66 3,179,718.00 2,741,179.34 13.8



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

INTEREST .00 100.00 100.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS .00 415,000.00 415,000.00 .0

.00 415,100.00 415,100.00 .0

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 62,654.44 438,423.00 375,768.56 14.3

62,654.44 438,423.00 375,768.56 14.3



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

LIBRARY FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 2,238.82 134,700.00 132,461.18 1.7

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 16,265.25 80,450.00 64,184.75 20.2

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 50.00 30,000.00 29,950.00 .2

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 1,847.00 12,300.00 10,453.00 15.0

FINES & FORFEITURES 2,694.11 15,000.00 12,305.89 18.0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL .00 1,100.00 1,100.00 .0

INTEREST .00 200.00 200.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS .00 131,100.00 131,100.00 .0

23,095.18 404,850.00 381,754.82 5.7

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 75,594.28 444,912.00 369,317.72 17.0

75,594.28 444,912.00 369,317.72 17.0



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 4

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 422,342.08 1,745,000.00 1,322,657.92 24.2

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 5,577.50 29,000.00 23,422.50 19.2

INTEREST .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 91.83 11,000.00 10,908.17 .8

428,011.41 1,788,500.00 1,360,488.59 23.9

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 159,900.06 2,324,761.00 2,164,860.94 6.9

159,900.06 2,324,761.00 2,164,860.94 6.9



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 5

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 429,244.27 2,626,680.00 2,197,435.73 16.3

INTEREST .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 179.56 2,500.00 2,320.44 7.2

429,423.83 2,638,180.00 2,208,756.17 16.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 384,723.56 3,405,469.00 3,020,745.44 11.3

384,723.56 3,405,469.00 3,020,745.44 11.3



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

STREET FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 6

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 14,263.89 84,000.00 69,736.11 17.0

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 3.61 .00 (                       3.61) .0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 296,049.17 861,119.00 565,069.83 34.4

INTEREST .00 250.00 250.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS .00 250.00 250.00 .0

310,316.67 945,619.00 635,302.33 32.8

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 240,376.33 977,462.00 737,085.67 24.6

240,376.33 977,462.00 737,085.67 24.6



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2012

SWIMMING POOL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/11/2012     03:39PM       PAGE: 7

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 2,661.67 153,400.00 150,738.33 1.7

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 22,981.60 105,000.00 82,018.40 21.9

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

INTEREST .00 300.00 300.00 .0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 619.63 79,000.00 78,380.37 .8

26,262.90 357,700.00 331,437.10 7.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 55,399.92 408,958.00 353,558.08 13.6

55,399.92 408,958.00 353,558.08 13.6



 

 
 
M E M O R A N D U M  
 

 
TO:                Mayor Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:            Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:      Monthly Crime Rate Comparison Statistical Sheets 
   
DATE:  September 17, 2012 
 
 
In August, the Police Department responded to 390 calls for service in Stayton.  We issued 242 
citations and warnings in Stayton.  Our Reserve Officers logged 128.5 volunteer hours for the 
month.  We used one person who needed to complete community service hours by having them 
help with cleaning the parking lot. Eight of our Officers and their families, 1 Records Staff, 6 
Reserves, and 7 citizen volunteers participated in helping with the National Night Out event 
where we served hamburgers and hot dogs to approximately 350 citizens.  Peer Court had 4 
juvenile referrals for August and 39 year to date. 
 
 

   AUG. 2012 
JAN. THRU AUG. 

2012 AUG. 2011 
JAN. THRU AUG. 

2011  
        
INCIDENTS  390 2834 418 2839  
        
CITATIONS/WARNINGS 242 2080 233 2094  
        
TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS 8 88 15 85  
        
ARRESTS  58 412 49 388  

 
 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 







 

 
 
M E M O R A N D U M  
 

 
TO:                Mayor Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:            Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:      An Order Declaring an Emergency Speed Zone for the City of 

Stayton -Informational 
   
DATE:  September 17, 2012 
 
 
Due to the recent completion of the N. Tenth Ave. project, we have determined a speed zone 
needs to be set by the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) for that section of the 
street. For this to occur, ODOT must complete a traffic study. In the meantime, the Stayton 
Municipal Code and Oregon Revised Statutes allows for an “Order” by the Police Chief to create 
an “emergency speed zone” during the interim. Without an Order, the speed of N. Tenth reverts 
to the “Violation of Basic Rule” law which eliminates a “max speed” and could potentially allow 
someone to drive at 55 mph on that street. Therefore, I have implemented the attached “Order”.  
The “Order” is limited in duration until ODOT can complete the study or 120 days (whichever 
occurs first). 
 
The “Order” has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney 
 
No action is needed at this time. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 





   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
  

TO:       Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM:  Jennifer Russell, Administrative Assistant 
 
THRU:  Dave Kinney, Public Works Director 
       
DATE:  September 17, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   August Monthly Operating Report 
 
 
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 36.38 million gallons were treated during August. The highest 

flow was 1.78 million gallons on August 27th, and the lowest flow was .92 
million gallons on August 4th. The average flow was 1.17 million gallons. 

   
Total rainfall for August was .04 inches. 

  
15.72 tons of dewatered biosolids were produced. 

 
• WTP Highest production day was 7,112,000 on the August 16th. 
 
• Water System City crews mowed and cleaned up the Lau property and cleaned the #1 filter bed 

at the Water Treatment Plant. Replaced and lowered 9 valve boxes and lowered 
the remaining valve boxes on First Ave for the Marion County Overlay Project. 
Replaced five meters and one radio and installed 25 radios and installed two new 
meters. 

 
• Streets Swept  89 curb miles and removed approximately 27 cubic yards of material.  
    Completed the 6th Ave Overlay Project.          

 
• Building Permits   

 Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid
New Single Family Dwelling 0  
Residential Building Addition/Alteration/Other 0  
Commercial Building Addition/Alteration/Other 2  
Electrical 2  
Mechanical  0  
Plumbing 3  

TOTAL 7  
* One (1) Residential SDC = $11,065 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 of 1 
September 17, 2012 



 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
    

TO:  Mayor A. Scott Vigil and City Councilors 
 
THRU: City Administrator Don Eubank 
 
FROM: David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE: September 17, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: Public Works Update – Informational Items 
  
 
Here is a brief update on projects or issues the Public Works Department is currently working 
on. 
 
1. Street Projects 

 
a. 6th Avenue Paving: Project is complete.   
 
b. 10th Avenue:   Project is 95% complete.  Final work on manhole/valve adjustments, 

pedestrian path to E. Hollister St., hydroseeding grass areas and planting in the detention 
pond will be completed before September 30th.  Planting may be delayed until October 
2012.   

 
c. 1st Avenue – Water Utility Adjustments & Water Main Crossing @ Washington St. 

 
The City & Canyon Contracting will complete the installation of a new valve and 8” 
water main across the intersection by Friday, September 14th.   

 
d. 1st Avenue - Marion County Overlay
 

Marion County Public Works will grind and resurface First Avenue from IDA to 
WHITNEY streets on September 17th and 18th.  The work will take place on the travel 
lanes only and at night.     

  
2. City Hall Roof Repairs 

 
Pfeifer Roofing is expected to complete the roof replacement at the City Hall / Police 
Department by September 24th, weather permitting.     

 
Public Works Update Memo  Page 1 of 2 
September 17, 2012   



3. Street Lights – 1st & Washington St. 
 

Fluent Engineering completed a review of street lighting at the 1st & Washington St. 
intersection.  Enclosed is their report.  Staff will be reviewing the recommendations with 
Marion County Public Works and we will get a cost estimate from Pacific Power.  We 
will place this as an “Action Item” on the October 1st or 15th, 2012 agenda.   

 

 
Public Works Update Memo  Page 2 of 2 
September 17, 2012   



 

City of Stayton 
1st and Washington Intersection 
Street Lighting  
08/13/2012 



 

R:\Fluent Eng
8_13_2012.d

Table
Project Ov

Project Ap

Why 3 Op

Option A 

Option B .

�������	 .

Comparis

Supportin

Option 

Option 

Option 

Light F

Definit

 

 

gineering\Projects\
ocx 

Stew

e	of	Con
verview .......

pproach .......

ptions ...........

....................

.....................

.....................

on and Recom

ng Documents

A Lighting A

B Lighting A

C Lighting A

Fixture Schedu

ion of “Level

\City of Stayton_W

wardship T

ntents	
.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

mmendations

s ....................

Area Map (LA

Area Map (LA

Area Map (LA

ule (LFS) .....

l of Concern”

Washington Interse

Through De

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

 of Options ...

.....................

AMA) ...........

AMB) ............

AMC)  ...........

.....................

” ....................

ection Lighting_12

esign.  Fl

 

 

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

2138\Design Docu

luentEngin

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

uments\City of Sta

neering.com

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

ayton StreetLight R

m 

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

......................

Retrofit 

1 

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 3 

....... 4 

....... 5 

....... 5 

....... 6 

....... 6 

....... 7 

....... 8 

....... 9 

..... 10 



 

 

Proje
The City o
Both optio
on the ind
Illuminati
LEDgend
constructi
constructi

Proje
The existi
industry s
spacing b
roadway i
The amou
possible s

Why	
At the req

 O
 O
 O

 

 

Stew

ect	Over
of Stayton ha
ons were desi

dustry standar
ing Engineeri

d fixture was c
ion, warranty
ion or design 

ect	Appr
ing light level
standards and 
etween poles,
information w
unt of pedestr
solutions for t

3	Optio
quest of the C

Option A – a o
Option B – an 
Option C – an 

wardship T

rview	
as requested tw
igned using th
rds for roadwa
ng Society (I
chosen becau
, construction
document. 

roach	
ls at the inters
found to be i

, height of po
was obtained f
ian traffic wa
the City of Sta

ons	
ity of Stayton

one-for-one re
optimization 
analysis to de

Through De

wo lighting op
he Holophane
ay lighting.  T
ES) RP-8 Sta
se of their ma

n type, perform

section of 1st

inadequate.  F
oles, and locat
from the City

as estimated.  
ayton.   

n, Fluent Eng

eplacement of
of lighting ef

etermine if st

esign.  Fl

ptions for the
e LEDgend ro
The standard 
andard for Str
anufacturer’s
mance, and p

Ave. and Wa
Field data was
tion of the fix

y of Stayton fo
Analysis was

ineering perfo

f existing fixt
fficiency whi
andards can b

luentEngin

e Intersection 
oadway lighti
used as a bas

reet Lighting 
LED color te
roprietary fea

ashington St. w
s collected in
xture towards 
or the classifi
s then conduc

formed three a

tures 
le meeting sta
be met using o

neering.com

of 1st Ave. an
ing fixture and
sis of design i
Illumination. 

emperature co
atures/benefit

were analyze
cluding the lo
the roadway.

ication of the 
cted in order t

analyses: 

andards 
only existing 

m 

nd Washingto
d evaluated b
n this case is 
  Holophane 

onsistency, qu
ts. This is not 

d in comparis
ocations of po
.  Additional 
roadway’s us

to determine 

poles 

2 

on St.  
based 

the 

uality 
a 

son to 
oles, 

se.  



 

 

Optio
Option A 
general lo
informatio
mounting 

A summa
effective r
identified

Roadw

1st Av
1st Av
1st Av

Washingt
Washingt
Washingt
Washingt

1st Av
1st Av

* See Pag

** See Pa

*** See P

 

 

Stew

on	A	
is a 1-for-1 f

ocations of the
on was then u
arms. 

ary of the anal
replacement f
. 

way
Light 

#*

H
fr

ve 1
ve 2
ve 3
ton St 4
ton St 5
ton St 6
ton St 7
ve 8
ve 9

ge 7 for Optio

age 10 for Lig

Page 11 for D

wardship T

fixture replace
e fixtures can
used to determ

lysis for repla
fixture used fo

ead offset 
rom Road 

(ft)

Distanc
Neare
Pole (

9 146
9 121
0 121
12 240
7 240
11 275
9 279
11 310
11 310

n A Light Ar

ght Fixture Sc

efinitions of “

 

Through De

ement of nine
n be seen on th
mine fixture re

acement of the
for analysis an

Table 1: Stay

ce to 
est 
(ft)

Height of 
Pole (ft) C

6 31
31
31

0 34
0 27
5 32
9 28
0 28
0 29

Stayton O

rea Map (LAM

chedule 

“Level of Con

esign.  Fl

e fixtures clos
he Option A L
eplacements u

e existing fixt
nd the fixtures

ton Option A S

Pedestrian 
lassification (Low, 
Medium, High)

Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium

Option A Summ

MA)  

ncern”  

luentEngin

sest to the eva
Lighting Area
utilizing the e

tures is show
s that were un

Summary 

Replacement 
Fixture**

Me

St
A
B
C
A
A
A
A
A
A

mary

neering.com

aluated interse
a Map (see Pa
existing poles

wn in Table 1. 
nable to meet

eets IES 
RP-8 

tandard

Level of
Concern

***
No Medium
Yes NA
Yes NA
No Medium
No Low
No Medium
No Low
No Medium
No Low

m 

ection.  The 
age 5).   The 
s and fixture 

 The most 
t standards are

f 
n

School 
Zone

Replacem
Fixtur
(Watts

m Yes 240
Yes 198
Yes 133

m No 240
No 240

m No 240
No 240

m No 240
No 240
Total 2011

3 

e 

ment 
re 
s)

1  



 

 

Optio
The purpo
Option B 
being illum
determine
spacing w
determine
was calcu

Roadway

1st Ave
2nd Ave
3rd Ave
4th Ave
5th Ave
6th Ave

Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington

* See Pag

** See P

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stew

on	B	
ose of this opt
is a lighting d
minated by th

e the area that
was designed t
ed the amount
ulated.  Result

y
Light 

#*

Hea
fro

1
2
3
4
5
6

n St 7
n St 8
n St 9
n St 10
n St 11
n St 12
n St 13

ge 8 for Ligh

age 10 for L

wardship T

tion is to opti
design based 
he existing nin
t would need 
to meet indus
t of fixtures n
ts are shown b

ad offset 
m Road 
(ft)

Distance
Neare
Pole (f

5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350
5 350

ht Area Map

Light Fixture

Through De

imize the ligh
on adding ne
ne fixtures.  T
to be illumina

stry standards
necessary to il
below in Tabl

Table 2: Stay

e to 
st 
ft)

Height of 
Pole (ft) C

28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28

Stayton O

p  

e Schedule 

esign.  Fl

hting efficienc
w poles and f

The distances 
ated in all dir
.  After an op
lluminate the 
le 2. 

yton Option B S

Pedestrian 
Classification (Low

Medium, High)
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium

Option B Sum

 

luentEngin

cy of the road
fixtures to lig
 measured in 

rections from 
ptimal fixture 

same area be

Summary 

w, 
Replacement 

Fixture**

M

B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B

mmary

neering.com

dway while m
ght the area th

the field wer
the intersecti
and spacing c

eing illuminat

Meets IES 
RP-8 

Standard

Leve
Conc

Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA
Yes NA

m 

meeting standa
hat is currently
re used to 
ion.  Fixture 
combination
ted by Option

l of 
ern

School 
Zone

Repl
Fi
(W

A Yes
A Yes
A Yes
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No
A No

Total 2

4 

ards.  
y 

was 
n A 

lacement 
ixture 

Watts)
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198

2574



 

 

Optio
The purpo
using exis
fixture arm
best possi

* See Pag

** See P

Comp
 O
 O
 O

ho
 In

L
op

 

 

 

Roadway

1st Ave
1st Ave
1st Ave
1st Ave
1st Ave
1st Ave
1st Ave

Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington

Stew

on	C	
ose of this opt
sting telephon
ms are require
ible light distr

ge 9 for Ligh

age 10 for L

parison
Option A: leas
Option B: may
Option C: mid

owever, this o
n every scena

Lighting at the
ption that bes

y
Light 

#*

Hea
from

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

n St 8
n St 9
n St 10
n St 11
n St 12
n St 13
n St 14
n St 15

wardship T

tion is to dete
ne and power 
ed on existing
ribution unde

ht Area Map

Light Fixture

n	and	Re
st cost option 
y be economic
dle cost optio
option results
rio, an additio

e Washington 
st fits the avai

ad offset 
m Road 
(ft)

Distance
Neares
Pole (f

3 121
3 121
3 146
7 140
7 140
7 140
7 160
7 140
7 80
7 80
7 110
7 120
7 120
7 130
7 150

Through De

ermine if the I
poles.  Fixtur

g poles with n
r this constra

Table 3: Stay

p. New pole 

e Schedule 

ecomme
- does not me
cally unfeasib
on - does not m
s in more area
onal light pos
and 1st inters

ilable budget 

e to 
st 
ft)

Height of 
Pole (ft) Cl

30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30

Stayton O

esign.  Fl

IES RP-8 Sta
re arms are re
new fixtures. 
int was determ

ton Option C S

locations ind

endatio
eet the IES RP
ble due to hig
meet the IES 

as meeting the
st is required t
section. It is r
with incentiv

Pedestrian 
lassification (Low,
Medium, High)

Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium

Option C Summ

luentEngin

andard for Stre
eused in exist
 All existing 
mined.  Resul

Summary 

dicated with

ons	of	O
P-8 Standard

gh constructio
RP-8 Standa

e standard tha
to meet the IE

recommended
ves. 

, 
Replacement 

Fixture**

M

S
A
A
D
A
A
A
A
A
B
C
B
A
A
B
B

mary

neering.com

eet Lighting i
ting fixture lo
poles were co
lts are shown

h (*)  

Options	
for Street Lig

on costs. 
ard for Street L
an Option A. 
ES RP-8 Stan
d the city coun

Meets IES 
RP-8 

Standard

Level 
Conce

Yes NA
No Low
No Mediu
No Mediu
No Mediu
No Mediu
No Low
No Low
Yes NA
Yes NA
No NA
Yes NA
No Low
No Low
No Low

m 

is achievable 
ocations; new 
onsidered and

n below in Tab

ghting. 

Lighting; 

ndard for Stre
ncil approve a

of 
rn

School 
Zone

Replac
Fix
(Wa

Yes 2
Yes 2

um Yes 2
um No 2
um No 2
um No 2

No 2
No 2
No 1
No 1
No 1
No 2
No 2
No 1
No 1

Total 33

5 

by 

d the 
ble 3. 

 

et 
an 

cement 
ture 
atts)

240
240
240
240
240
240
240
240
98
33
98

240
240
98
98

325



 

 

Supp

Option

Stew

orting	D

n	A	Lighti

5 

K

 = L

W

wardship T

Docume

ing	Area	

Key 

Light # 

Washington

Through De

ents	

Map	(LA

4 
n St

esign.  Fl

AMA)	

1

2

3

9

8

1st Ave

luentEnginneering.com

6

m 

7

6 

 



 

 

Option

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stew

n	B	Lighti

K

 = L

W
7 

wardship T

ing	Area	

8 

Key 

Light # 

Washingto

Through De

Map	(LA

9
on St

1s

esign.  Fl

AMB)	

3

2

1

6

4

st Ave

10

5

luentEngin

1

neering.com

11
1

m 

2 
13

7 

 

3



 

 

 

Option

	
 

 

 

 

Stew

n	C	Lighti

8

wardship T

ing	Area	

9

Key 

 = Light # 

Through De

Map	(LA

10
11

esign.  Fl

AMC)	

1

2

3

5

4

6

7

luentEngin

12

neering.com

13 14

m 

15

8 

	



Desig

A

B

C

D

 

 

Light	F

nation

A

Cobra head s
aluminum ho
resistance an
comply with 
acceleration 
surge protect
specification
(120-277v) L
that is adjusta
uplight.  Con
with bonded 
LED’s and b
not less than 
shed housing
Owner.  Inst

B

Cobra head s
aluminum ho
resistance an
comply with 
acceleration 
surge protect
specification
(120-277v) L
that is adjusta
uplight.  Con
with bonded 
LED’s and b
not less than 
shed housing
Owner.  Inst

C

Cobra head s
aluminum ho
resistance an
comply with 
acceleration 
surge protect
specification
(120-277v) L
that is adjusta
uplight.  Con
with bonded 
LED’s and b
not less than 
shed housing
Owner.  Inst

D

Cobra head s
aluminum ho
resistance an
comply with 
acceleration 
surge protect
specification
(120-277v) L
that is adjusta
uplight.  Con
with bonded 
LED’s and b
written midge
years with fu
Gray, Type I
and connecte

Stew

Fixture	S

Descript

style LED street light
ousing, low copper alu
nd long life.  Luminair
ANSI c136:31 2001 f
for normal road and b
tion tested to ANSI/E
.  The device consists

LED Driver.  Include 
able without tools and

ntains individual and re
aluminum heat sinks.

bullet resistant glass sh
5 years with full cov

g.  Gray, Type III Dist
talled and connected b

style LED street light
ousing, low copper alu
nd long life.  Luminair
ANSI c136:31 2001 f
for normal road and b
tion tested to ANSI/E
.  The device consists

LED Driver.  Include 
able without tools and

ntains individual and re
aluminum heat sinks.

bullet resistant glass sh
5 years with full cov

g.  Gray, Type III Dist
talled and connected b
style LED street light

ousing, low copper alu
nd long life.  Luminair
ANSI c136:31 2001 f
for normal road and b
tion tested to ANSI/E
.  The device consists

LED Driver.  Include 
able without tools and

ntains individual and re
aluminum heat sinks.

bullet resistant glass sh
5 years with full cov

g.  Gray, Type III Dist
talled and connected b
style LED street light

ousing, low copper alu
nd long life.  Luminair
ANSI c136:31 2001 f
for normal road and b
tion tested to ANSI/E
.  The device consists

LED Driver.  Include 
able without tools and

ntains individual and re
aluminum heat sinks.

bullet resistant glass sh
e fly warranty rider.  
ull coverage replacem
IV Distribution. Furnis
ed by Contractor.

wardship T

chedule	

tion

t standard.  Rugged d
uminum, allow for corr
re is designed and tes
for 100,000 cycles at 
bridge application.  In

EEEC62.41-2002 
s of Auto-sensing volt
a photocontrol recept

d ROAM compatible.
eplaceable LED Mod
  Indirect reflection o
hield IP6 rated.  War

verage replacement.  S
tribution. Furnished b
by Contractor.

t standard.  Rugged d
uminum, allow for corr
re is designed and tes
for 100,000 cycles at 
bridge application.  In

EEEC62.41-2002 
s of Auto-sensing volt
a photocontrol recept

d ROAM compatible.
eplaceable LED Mod
  Indirect reflection o
hield IP6 rated.  War

verage replacement.  S
tribution. Furnished b
by Contractor.
t standard.  Rugged d
uminum, allow for corr
re is designed and tes
for 100,000 cycles at 
bridge application.  In

EEEC62.41-2002 
s of Auto-sensing volt
a photocontrol recept

d ROAM compatible.
eplaceable LED Mod
  Indirect reflection o
hield IP6 rated.  War

verage replacement.  S
tribution. Furnished b
by Contractor.
t standard.  Rugged d
uminum, allow for corr
re is designed and tes
for 100,000 cycles at 
bridge application.  In

EEEC62.41-2002 
s of Auto-sensing volt
a photocontrol recept

d ROAM compatible.
eplaceable LED Mod
  Indirect reflection o
hield IP6 rated.  Inclu
Warranty not less tha

ment.  Snow shed hous
shed by Owner.  Inst

L

Through De

(LFS)	

die cast 
rosion 
ted to 
3 g 

ntegral 

ltage 
tacle 
  No 

dules 
of 
rranty 
Snow 

by 

Holophane L

die cast 
rosion 
ted to 
3 g 

ntegral 

ltage 
tacle 
  No 

dules 
of 
rranty 
Snow 

by 

Holophane L

die cast 
rosion 
ted to 
3 g 

ntegral 

ltage 
tacle 
  No 

dules 
of 
rranty 
Snow 

by 

Holophane L

die cast 
rosion 
ted to 
3 g 

ntegral 

ltage 
tacle 
  No 

dules 
of 
ude 
an 5 
sing.  
talled 

Holophane L

Light Fixture S

esign.  Fl

Manufactur

LEDgend LEDG 108 

LEDgend LEDG 120 

LEDgend LEDG 60 7

LEDgend LEDG 36 7

chedule

luentEngin

rer

70 4K AS G L3 R P

53 4K AS G L3 R P

70 4K AS G L3 R PC

70 4K AS G L4 R PC

neering.com

LEDs Driver (

CS 108 700

CS 120 525

CS 60 700

CS 108 700

m 

 

(mA) Watts

0 240

5 196

0 140

0 240

9 



 

 

 

Definit
In design
to curren
lighting m
Level of 
the stand

Level of 

NA 
Low 

Medium

High 
(Not Use
Very Hig
(Not Use

 

Stew

tion	of	“L
ning the 1-fo
nt standard be
meets the req
Concern wh

dard.   

Concern (a

Not A
A Low
from t
deviat

m A Me
than t
also b

ed) 
A Hig
and br

gh 
ed) 

A Ver
norma
cause
provid
is adv
 

wardship T

Level	of	C
or-1 fixture re
ecause of the
quirements o
hich is based

as shown in 

Applicable 
w classificat
the IES Stan
tion from the

edium classif
the IES Stan
be slightly hi
gh classificat
rightness dif
ry High clas
al vision.  Ex
a blinding e

ding new po
vised.  

Through De

Concern”
eplacement,
e spacing be
of IES RP-8
d upon the de

“Level of C

tion was give
ndard.  The l
e Standard.
fication was 
dard indicate
igher or lowe
tion was giv
fferences tha
sification is 
xamples of t
event for a p
oles, differen

esign.  Fl

”	
Option A, c

etween poles
.  The follow
egree of diffe

Concern” co

en to roadwa
lighting at th

given to roa
es.  The brig
er than the R

ven to roads w
at may impac
a severe con

this include d
erson with n

nt equipment

luentEngin

certain areas
s.  Fluent En
wing classific
ference betw

olumn on Li

ays that are n
hese fixtures 

adways that 
ghtness that t
RP-8 standar
with much l
ct normal vi
ndition that m
darkness to b
normal vision
t, or leaving 

neering.com

 were unable
ngineering re
cation metho

ween the field

ight Work S

not significa
will be less 

will be notic
the eyes can
rd defines. 
ower averag
ision. 
may prevent
brightness le
n.  In this cir
the existing 

m 

e to be broug
ecommends s
od defines e
d condition a

Schedule): 

antly differen
noticeable o

ceably dimm
n adjust to m

ge light level

t sight with 
evels that ma
rcumstance 
fixtures in-p

10 

ght 
street 
ach 

and 

nt 
of a 

mer 
may 

ls 

ay 

place 



   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM: Rebekah Meeks, Pool Manager 
   
DATE: September 17, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: August Pool Monthly Operating Report 
 
SALES

 AUG 2012 
SALES 

2012-2013 
YTD 

AUG 2011 
SALES 

2011-2012 
YTD 

Swim Lessons $       716.00 $    4,358.25 $    1,117.55 $    4,824.55

Daily Receipts $    4,040.94 $    8,146.10 $    5,064.72 $    9,997.27

Pool Rentals $    2,030.00 $    2,870.00 $    1,035.00 $    1,340.00

Pool Vending $       226.25 $       550.73 $       349.25 $       774.15

Memberships $    3,640.00  $    7,607.25  $    1,615.00 $    4,141.13

Lifeguard Training $         35.00 $         35.00 $           0.00 $           0.00

Other $           0.00 $           0.00 $      120 .00 $       130.00

TOTAL $10,688.19 $23,567.33  $ 9,301.52 $21,207.10
Target revenue above general fund and levy subsidies is $108,500.  YTD sales 
represent approximately 22% of that target. 

 
        
ATTENDANCE

 AUG 2012 AUG 2011
Exercise / Therapy 1,562 1,269

Lap Swim 576 487

Open Swim 1,685 1,118

Swim Lessons 113            109

Kiwanis Attendance 0 0

TOTAL PATRONS GUARDED 3,936 2,983
 
 
Pool Monthly Operating Report   
September 17, 2012 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

                                     

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors  
 
FROM: Louise Meyers 
 
DATE: September 17, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: Library Director’s Report, August Activities 
  
 
 
Updates: 
 
More than 636 children registered for the Summer Reading program this year, an increase from 
last year’s total of 535. More than 50% of those who signed up met the goal of reading for 20 
minutes a day. Over 1,660 children and adults attended programs at the library. The non-fiction 
program called Travel the Universe with Dewey had 1,113 entries, meaning children read a book 
for each entry. 
 
The Teen Summer Reading program was also a success, with 142 teens registered. Also, 99 
adults signed up to keep track of reading for a chance to enter raffle drawings. Prizes were 
donated by local businesses were awarded to the winners in both programs. 
 
We conducted a photo contest to go along with the theme of Night, called “Your Town at Night” 
and the photographs are on display at the Library. They are available for purchase by silent 
auction. 
 



CHECKOUTS 13,918 11,223 25,062 25,141 0%

Non-resident cards             $ 1,046 692 1,840 1,738 -6%

Fines: overdue books        $ 866 1,011 3,385 1,877 -45%

Room fees                        $ 109 0 432 109 -75%

Fees-cards and  lost books $ 776 140 825 916 11%

Total 6,483 4,231 -35%

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

Reference questions 559 528 957 1,087 14%

Telephone 302 346 569 648 14%

Total 1,526 1,735 14%

INTERNET USE 1,946 1,837 3,800 3,783 0%

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

Children/teens 827 224 1,344 1,051 -22%

Adults 350 79 572 429 9%

Outreach 75 57 132 114 -14%

Total 1,916 1,594 -17%

MEETING ROOM 
ATTENDANCE

1,217 341 1,987 1,558 -22%

PATRON VISITS 9,383 8,069 16,452 17,452 6%

JuneMaySept. 2012-13 
YTD

Feb.Dec. Jan.

INCOME Received

2012 - 2013 Monthly Library Statistics 
March April % 

Change
2011-12Oct. Nov.July August






	Stayton City Council Meeting - September 17, 2012
	Consent Agenda
	City Council Minutes - September 4, 2012

	New Business
	Refinancing of the 1997 USDA and 2007 DEQ Sewer Bonds

	Staff / Commission Reports
	Monthly Finance Department Report
	Monthly Crime Rate Comparison Statistical Sheets
	An Order Declaring an Emergency Speed Zone fro the City of Stayton - Informational
	Public Works Monthly Operating Report
	Public Works Update - Informational Items
	Pool Monthly Operating Report
	Library Director's Report





